
Oak Valley Hospital

Regular Board Packet
April 3, 2025

Board Packet

Agenda

04.03.2024 - District Board Agenda .............................................................................. 2

Consent Calendar Reports

April 25 Board Report .................................................................................................... 8

Regular Board Meeting Minutes

03.06.2025 Board Meeting Minutes ............................................................................... 9
03.24.2025 Special Board Meeting Minutes ............................................................... 17

Medical Staff Reports

04-03-2025 Open Session Memo ................................................................................. 19
Open Session Packet ................................................................................................... 21

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

Page 1 of 175

http://www.tcpdf.org


OUR MISSION

“We Focus on Personalized Quality Health Care and Wellness for Those We Serve”

OUR VISION
“Oak Valley Hospital District Will Continue as an Independent Locally Controlled and

Governed Special District Hospital.  To Accomplish This We Will Adhere to the Following Guidelines:
Being Fiscally Responsible in Our Decision Making Process

Maintain and Expand Services that Best Reflect Our Needs and Resources Available
Promote Positive Change in the Health Status of Employees and Area Residents.”

OUR VALUES
“Accountability; Being Responsible for Actions Taken and Not Taken

Integrity; Doing the Right Thing for the Right Reason
Respect; Valuing All People at All Times”

~~~~~~~~~~~

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF OAK VALLEY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

April 3, 2025, 5:30p.m.,
1425 West H Street, Oakdale, CA  95361

Royal and Charter Oak Conference Rooms

Time Action Item

5:30 p.m. Action MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
Dan Cummins, Chair Person 

PUBLIC COMMENT
In compliance with the California Brown Act the District Board of Directors welcomes comments 
from the public.

This is the opportunity for members of the public to directly address the District Board of 
Directors on any item of interest to the public under the jurisdiction of the District including items 
on this agenda.

Persons wishing to make a presentation to the Board of Directors shall observe the following 
procedure:
  
1. A written request to the Board on the form provided at the meeting (optional)
2. Oral presentations are limited to three (3) minutes.
3. Members of the public will be afforded the opportunity to speak at the beginning of the public 

meeting during the general Public Comment section of the agenda on any item under the 
jurisdiction of the District as well as during the consideration of an individual item on the 
agenda for that public meeting, however the three-minute limit described in item 2, above, will
be applied to an individual’s cumulative comments during the meeting. 

The proceedings of the Board are recorded and are part of the public record. 

Page 2 of 175



Oak Valley Hospital
District Board Agenda
April 3, 2025

Materials related to an item on this Agenda, submitted to the Oak Valley Hospital District after 
distribution of the agenda packet, are available for public inspection in the Secretary’s Office at 
1425 West H Street, Suite 270, Oakdale, CA during normal business hours.

 
Action                         ADMINISTRATION OF OATH OF OFFICE

    – Dan Cummins, Chair Person

 Danielle Sanders

Information/Action CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
Items 1-3 comprise the consent agenda, unless there is discussion by a member of 
the audience or Board Members, they may be approved in one motion. 

1. Oakdale Nursing and Rehabilitation Center Report
Will Pringle, V.P., Oakdale Nursing and Rehabilitation Center

2. Approval of Administrative Forms and Policies
 Form0693 – Safety Monitoring
 Form3425 – OVHD HIE Opt-Out Form
 Ethics Committee
 Sitter Guidelines

3.Approval of Minutes –    

 March 6, 2025– Regular Meeting
 March 24, 2025 – Special Meeting

Action                       MEDICAL STAFF REPORT – Gretchen Webb-Kummer, M.D., Chief of Staff

The Medical Executive Committee requests the District Board’s approval of the following items 
forwarded from the March 18, 2025 meeting.  

A. The Department of Medicine Committee Report – (03/11/2025)
Lee Horwitz, MD, Chairperson

i. FORMS & POLICIES
FORMS Approval

 Form 0418 ED-Admission Orders (Retire)
 Form 3002 Emergency Department Bridge Orders
 Form1112 Stroke Clinical Pathway
 Form 3000 Bariatric Post Op Orders
 Form 3001 Bariatric Pre-Operative Order Instructions

2 Page 3 of 175



Oak Valley Hospital
District Board Agenda
April 3, 2025

POLICIES Approval

Administrative Manual

 Performance Improvement Plan FY 2025

Clinical Manual

 Critical Value/Test Results Read-Back
 Pediatric Admissions  

Community Health Centers Manual

 Injections


Infection Control Manual

 Hand Hygiene  
 Tetanus/Diphtheria/Acellular Pertussis Vaccine Screening 

and Administration 

Nutritional Food Services Manual

 Access to Nutrition and Food Services Department (Retire)
o Combined with Personnel Permitted in the Department

 Diets
 Diet Cardex (Retire)
 Floor Safety (Retire)
 Food From Outside Sources
 Food Ordering and Receiving
 Food Preparation and Service
 Food Storage
 Food Temperatures
 Meal Service to Residents
 Organization & Staff
 Personnel Management
 Procedures on the Sanitation of Water Pitchers
 Provision of Food or Nutrition Products for Altered Diets and Meal Schedules

 Re-Admission Nutritional Risk Note (Retire)
 Receiving and Storage Safety
 Safety in Food Preparation
 Safety Guidelines
 Safety Rules (Retire)

o Combined with Safety Guidelines 
 Sanitizing Dishwashing Area
 Standards of Care
 Texture Change Documentation (Retire)
 Tray Assembly (Retire)

3 Page 4 of 175



Oak Valley Hospital
District Board Agenda
April 3, 2025

 Trial Diets

Respiratory Therapy Manual

 Arrival of New Electrical Equipment
 Bi-Level Positive Airway Pressure (BiPAP)
 Blood Spill Procedure (Retire)
 Broken Equipment Procedure (Retire)
 Carboxy HgB Samples (Retire)
 Considerations in Oxygen Therapy for Infants (Retire)
 Continuous Pulse Oximetry (Retire)
 Cough Techniques and Respiratory Exercises (Retire)
 Crash Cart Supply List (Retire)
 Disposable Equipment Change Outs
 Downtime Procedure Record Keeping on the Ventilator Flow Sheet (Retire) 
 EKG Interpretation Guideline
 Emergency Oxygen Process
 Evaluating Patient Test Results (Retire)
 General Safety Precautions with Oxygen Administration (Retire)
 General Statement of the Administration of Oxygen
 Nebulizer and Aerosol Therapy
 Handling of Gas Cylinders (Retire)
 Head Hood Oxygen or Free-Flow Oxygen (Retire)
 Humidifiers (Retire)
 Incentive Spirometry
 Indications and Precautions with Continuous Ventilation
 In-Service Education (Retire)
 Intubation

ii. DEPARTEMNT SCOPE OF SERVICE
 Medical/Surgical Telemetry Department Approval

iii. Revised/New-Radiology Privilege Set Approval

B. The Department of Surgery Committee Report – (Next Mtg 04/08/2025)    Standing
Matt                        Matthew Tilstra, MD, Chairperson 

C. The Quality Council Report – (Next Sch Mtg 04/10/2025) Standing
Lee                        Lee Horwitz, MD, Chairperson 

FINANCE COMMITTEE – Edward Chock, M.D., Chairperson

4 Page 5 of 175



Oak Valley Hospital
District Board Agenda
April 3, 2025

- Matt Heyn, President and C.E.O. and Ann Croskrey, CFO

Action 1. Financial Reports for February 2025
     Approval of February 2025 Financial Statements

CHAIR PERSON REPORT
    - Dan Cummins Chair Person

Information 1. Chair Person Comments

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT
               -  Matt Heyn, President and Chief Executive Officer

Information 1.  Chief Executive Officer Report

Information  2. Update on New Electronic Health Record System for Clinics
  - David Rodrigues, Chief Operating Officer 

Information 3. Overview of PR/Marketing Strategy
  - David Rodrigues, Chief Operating Officer

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION

Action 1. Approval of Closed Session Minutes –
    

 March 6, 2025 - Regular Meeting

(See attached Agenda for Closed Session)

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

Information REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION

Action ADJOURNMENT

The next Regular meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled on May 1, 2025 at 5:30p.m.

Posted on: March 31, 2025                      By: Sheryl Perry, Clerk of the Board     

5 Page 6 of 175



Oak Valley Hospital
District Board Agenda
April 3, 2025

OAK VALLEY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AGENDA FOR CLOSED SESSION

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.2 and 54954.5, the board agenda may describe closed session agenda items as provided below.  No
legislative body or elected official shall be in violation of Section 54954.2 or 54956 if the closed session items are described in substantial compliance with

Section 54954.5 of the Government Code.

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Oak Valley Hospital District
April 3, 5:30p.m., 

1425 West H Street, Oakdale, CA  95361
Royal Oak Conference Room 

CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS

HEARINGS/REPORTS
(Government Code §37624.3 & Health and Safety Code §§1461, 32155)

Subject matter: (Specify whether testimony/deliberation will concern staff privileges, report of medical 
audit committee, or report of quality assurance committee): 

 Medical Staff Credentials Report – Gretchen Webb-Kummer M.D., Chief of Staff

 Chief Executive Officer – Matt Heyn, President and Chief Executive Officer

In observance of the Americans with Disabilities Act, please notify us at 209-848-4102 prior to the meeting so that 
we may provide the agenda in alternative formats or make disability-related modifications and accommodations.

6 Page 7 of 175



April 2025 ONRC Board Report

ONRC is pleased to report our 16thth consecutive month of operations with a patient census 

above budget.  This February we closed with an Average Daily Census of 92.  Our custodial 

census remains stable and averaged 81 patients per day.  Both our average daily census along 

and custodial census remain in line with our performance, last year. Finally, the census in our 

Transitional Care Unit or 300 Wing has remained strong where we averaged 94% occupancy.   

We are thrilled to announce the successful completion of our annual relicensing and 

recertification survey by CMS and the California Department of Public Health.  The survey team 

consisted of 4 Health Facilities Evaluator Nurses, who spent roughly 225 labor hours surveying 

ONRC.  They thoroughly reviewed a large sample of patients and requested nearly 1,500 pages 

of materials in the process.  Interestingly, in 2024 the average California skilled nursing facility 

received 16 deficiencies.  I am proud to announce that we completed our survey with only 11 

deficiencies.  Simply put, ONRC performed 37% better than our California skilled nursing facility 

peers.  

Regarding staffing, we remain without the MDS nursing position.  That said, we have an 

interview with a local candidate set for the first week of April. 

Regarding the physical plant, Engineering is continuing to assess vendors for the replacement of

the main fire panel within ONRC.  

This concludes our April ONRC Board Report.     

William Pringle II

Page 8 of 175



REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF OAK VALLEY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

OPEN SESSION
March 6, 2025 5:30p.m.

1425 West H Street, Oakdale, CA  95361
Royal Oak Conference Room

Board     Staff
Dan Cummins, Chair Person Matt Heyn, President and C.E.O.

Frances Krieger, Vice Chair Person Gretchen Webb-Kummer, M.D., Chief of Staff

Edward Chock, M.D., Secretary David Rodrigues, V.P., C.O.O.

Sara Shipman, Director                              David Neal, V.P., Nursing Services

                                                                          Will Pringle, V.P., Oakdale Nursing & Rehab.

                                           

                                                                                                      Excused:  Ann Croskrey, CFO

CALLED TO ORDER 
The District Board of Directors Meeting was called to order by Dan Cummins, Board Chair Person at 5:32 
p.m.

PUBLIC COMMENT
Public comment read. Public in attendance. 

Nancy Podolsky expressed her enthusiasm about the hospital's recent additions of orthopedic and 
bariatric surgery services. She noted that it feels like the hospital is "coming back to life" with much-
needed services for the community.
  
CONSENT CALENDAR
The following items, 1-2, will be acted on by one action, with discussion, unless a director or other 

person requests that an item be considered separately.  In the event of such a request, the item will be 

addressed, considered, and acted upon separately. 

 1. Oakdale Nursing and Rehabilitation Center Report

        Will Pringle, V.P., Oakdale Nursing and Rehabilitation Center

2. Approval of Administrative Forms and Policies
                       • Disaster Welfare Inquiry

3.  Approval of Minutes
                       • February 6, 2025 – Regular Meeting

Edward Chock, M.D., made the motion to approve the Consent Calendar Items. Sara Shipman made the 
second. No public input. 
Cummins – Aye
Krieger – Aye 
Chock – Aye
Shipman – Aye              MOTION CARRIED

Page 9 of 175



Oak Valley Hospital District
District Board of Directors
Regular Meeting - Open Session
March 6, 2025

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT – Gretchen Webb-Kummer, M.D., Chief of Staff

The Medical Executive Committee requests the District Board’s approval of the following items 

forwarded from the February 18, 2025 meeting.

Forms/Policies  

A. FORMS & POLICIES

Administrative         Manual      

• Patient Safety Plan Anesthesia Services

• Anesthesia Rules and Regulations Employee Health 

Manual

• Employee Communicable Disease Work Restrictions

Edward Chock, M.D., made the motion to approve the Medical Staff Report. Frances Krieger made the 
second. No public input. 

Cummins – Aye
Krieger – Aye 
Chock – Aye
Shipman – Aye
           MOTION CARRIED
Financial Report for January 2025

Highlights from the Finance Committee report noted strong financial performance for January. Gross 
revenue was strong across the organization. Inpatient revenue met budget for the first time, despite the 
ICU remaining closed, and outpatient revenue exceeded budget by 11%.

The hospital closed the month with an operational profit of approximately $1.1 million. After accounting
for new hospital expenses, the net profit was $708,000. Year-to-date EBITDA stood at 17%, a strong 
indicator of cash flow, particularly notable for a rural, independent community hospital.

Days cash on hand increased from 58 to 92, boosted by additional IGT funds. Gross accounts receivable 
days rose slightly from 64 to 65. The hospital continues to see growth in outpatient services and has 
been actively engaging with local primary care practices to support this trend.

Sara Shipman made the motion to approve the Financial Report for January 2025. Fran Krieger made the 

second. No public input.

Cummins – Aye
Krieger – Aye 
Chock – Aye
Shipman – Aye                                                                        MOTION CARRIED

2

Page 10 of 175



Oak Valley Hospital District
District Board of Directors
Regular Meeting - Open Session
March 6, 2025

CHAIR PERSON REPORT – Dan Cummins, Chair Person

It was acknowledged that while the hospital will face a challenging financial year due to upcoming 
intergovernmental transfer paybacks, increased outpatient revenue and strategic initiatives are 
expected to help the organization navigate through the difficulty. Leadership remains confident the 
hospital will weather the storm.

An action item was presented regarding the resignation of Director Shirrelle O. Moore, who has 
accepted a position as the hospital’s Human Resources Manager. Her resignation creates a vacancy on 
the Board of Directors, which must now be filled.

There are two options for filling the vacancy: (1) calling a costly special election, or (2) having the Board 
appoint a new member following a public application process. The Board will proceed with the 
appointment process, which includes posting a public notice in at least three locations and accepting 
applications for a minimum of 15 days.

A special board meeting has been scheduled for March 24 at 5:30 PM at the regular meeting location, 
with the sole agenda item being the appointment of a fifth board member. The appointed individual will 
serve until the next general election, which is scheduled for less than two years from now.

Director Shipman expressed disappointment that the Board must go through this process so early in the 
term, particularly considering the cost and impact to the hospital.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Danielle Sanders addressed the Board to express her interest in filling the current board vacancy. She 
noted her recent candidacy and affirmed her continued commitment to both the hospital and the 
community. Ms. Sanders emphasized the importance of reconnecting the hospital with the community 
and acknowledged the Board's role in providing oversight rather than managing day-to-day operations. 
She stated that being attuned to the needs of the community can help bridge existing gaps. Ms. Sanders 
submitted a formal letter of intent and thanked the Board for their consideration.

Frances Krieger made the motion to accept Shirrelle O. Moore’s resignation. Sara Shipman made the 

second. made the second. No public input.

Cummins - Aye
Krieger – Aye 
Chock – Aye
Shipman – Aye          MOTION CARRIED
Edward Chock, M.D., made the motion to hold the Special Board meeting to appoint a new Board 

Member on March 24, 2025 at 5:30pm. Fran Krieger made the second. No public input.

Cummins - Aye
Krieger – Aye 
Chock – Aye
Shipman – Aye    MOTION CARRIED

3

Page 11 of 175



Oak Valley Hospital District
District Board of Directors
Regular Meeting - Open Session
March 6, 2025

Chief Executive Officer Report - Matt Heyn

Emergency and Hospitalist Coverage Transition
The hospital has officially announced a transition to a single provider group—Sound Physicians—for 
both Emergency Medicine and Hospitalist services. This change is designed to improve patient 
experience, streamline care delivery, and enhance operational efficiency. The agreement includes 
performance-based incentives tied to quality, cost, and other key objectives. While not all permanent 
providers will be in place by the transition date, temporary local coverage will support operations during
the onboarding period.

Revenue Cycle Audit
A full revenue cycle audit is underway in partnership with consulting firm Forvis. The audit includes 
evaluation of billing practices, workflow, charge capture, documentation integrity, denial management, 
and vendor performance. The final report will be presented to the Finance Committee and Board and 
will outline findings and improvement plans.

AllCare Insurance Clarification
Clarification was provided regarding AllCare health insurance. Oak Valley does accept AllCare HMO and 
IPAs, with the exception of the Alignment plan, which restricts certain services to other hospital 
systems. A public education effort, including flyers and social media outreach, will be launched to ensure
community awareness of accepted insurance plans.

Employee Survey Results
Results from the 2025 baseline employee survey were shared. A majority of respondents indicated they 
enjoy working at OVHD and would recommend it as a place of employment. Fewer respondents 
expressed confidence in the quality of care offered. Leadership plans to review the feedback in more 
detail and engage staff further to address concerns.

Cash Flow and Financial Forecast
A conservative cash flow analysis through fiscal year 2026 was presented. While the current fiscal year 
remains financially stable, projections for the following year indicate a potential decrease in cash on 
hand due to delayed reimbursements and increased expenses. Leadership emphasized transparency in 
presenting this outlook and highlighted opportunities for revenue growth and expense management to 
offset the projected gap.

Orthopedic Program Expansion
The hospital has launched elective orthopedic procedures, building on recent success with emergent 
cases. A strong partnership with Dr. Scott Calhoun and vendor Smith & Nephew supports this expansion.
Additionally, a no-cost robotic-assisted surgery agreement has been signed, with performance 
benchmarks in place. This program is expected to significantly enhance both patient care and hospital 
revenue.

4

Page 12 of 175



Oak Valley Hospital District
District Board of Directors
Regular Meeting - Open Session
March 6, 2025

Radiology Services Contract Recommendation
Mr. Heyn presented an information/action item regarding the hospital’s current radiology services. 
Ongoing quality concerns with the existing provider, Radiologica—including delays in report turnaround
—have impacted patient care and frustrated emergency physicians. Given recent investments in 
Emergency Medicine, alignment across the continuum of care is essential.

Mr. Heyn recommended terminating the current contract with Radiologica and entering into a new 
agreement with SOL Radiology. While the new agreement would result in an estimated $90,000 increase
in annual costs, it includes one full day per month of interventional radiology procedures. This added 
service is expected to offset the additional cost over time. 

Edward Chock, M.D., made a motion to approve entering into a contract with a new radiology group. 
Sara Shipman seconded the motion. No public input.

Cummins – Aye
Krieger – Aye
Chock – Aye
Shipman – Aye  MOTION CARRIED

Ultrasound Equipment Purchase
Mr. Heyn reported on a recent meeting with Dr. Matt Tilster of the HERA group, a continued partner in 
providing prenatal care through the hospital’s rural health clinic. Discussions are underway to expand 
the partnership to include GYN surgical coverage.

To support this effort and improve operational efficiency, the Board was asked to consider the purchase 
of a new ultrasound machine. The existing hospital unit will be relocated to the clinic, eliminating the 
need to move a shared unit between locations. A favorable purchase agreement was negotiated, and 
the cost will not exceed $110,000.

Sara Shipman made a motion to approve the purchase of a new Ultrasound Machine not to exceed 
$110,000. Fran Krieger seconded the motion. No public input.

Cummins – Aye
Krieger – Aye
Chock – Aye
Shipman – Aye  MOTION CARRIED

Disposal of Obsolete IT Equipment
The Board reviewed a list of obsolete IT equipment recommended for decommissioning, as included in 
the board packet. Annual disposal of such equipment requires formal Board approval.

Edward Chock, M.D., made the motion to dispose of obsolete IT Equipment. Fran Krieger made the 

second. No public input.

5

Page 13 of 175



Oak Valley Hospital District
District Board of Directors
Regular Meeting - Open Session
March 6, 2025

Cummins – Aye
Krieger – Aye
Chock – Aye
Shipman – Aye    MOTION CARRIED

Approval of United Steel Workers (USW) Negotiated Wage Increases – ONRC
The Board reviewed the negotiated and ratified wage increases for Oakdale Nursing and Rehabilitation 
Center (ONRC) employees under the United Steel Workers (USW) agreement. The total estimated cost 
of the increase is $154,026.44, based on a 2024 base wage of $5.5 million.

The adjustment represents an average increase of 2.77% across all ONRC employees. Specific increases 
include:

 Registered Nurses (RNs): $1.20 per hour
 Certified Nursing Assistants (CNAs): $0.60 per hour
 All other classifications: 2.25% increase

These increases were included in the organization’s FY2026 cash flow analysis. The Board was asked to 
consider approval of the wage adjustments.

Fran Krieger made the motion to approve the ONRC Wage Increase. Sara Shipman made the second. No 

public input.

Cummins – Aye
Krieger – Aye
Chock – Aye
Shipman – Aye    MOTION CARRIED

Approval of United Steel Workers (USW) and Non-Union Wage Increases – Acute Care and Other 
Departments
The Board reviewed proposed wage increases for hospital-based employees under the United Steel 
Workers (USW) agreement, as well as planned raises for non-union and management staff.

For the acute care (hospital) side, the negotiated wage increases will result in an estimated additional 
annual cost of $608,636.25. Key adjustments include:

 Med/Surg Registered Nurses: $10.00 per hour increase
 Laboratory Personnel: $5.00 per hour increase
 All other covered employees: 2.25% increase or a minimum of $0.65 per hour

In addition to USW-covered staff, wage increases are also planned for other areas of the organization:

 Clinic Staff (non-union): 2.25% across-the-board increase, totaling $113,895
 Non-union and Management (excluding clinics): 2.00% across-the-board increase, totaling 

$119,709

6

Page 14 of 175



Oak Valley Hospital District
District Board of Directors
Regular Meeting - Open Session
March 6, 2025

These adjustments were included in the financial forecast and presented to the Board for review and 
approval.

Sara Shipman made the motion to approve the USW and Non-Union Wage Increases. Edward Chock, 

M.D., made the second. No public input.

Cummins – Aye
Krieger – Aye
Chock – Aye
Shipman – Aye     MOTION CARRIED

Approval of NAGE Wage Increases – EMS Personnel
The Board reviewed a proposed wage adjustment for NAGE-represented ambulance personnel (EMS 
staff). Although the formal vote by the union has not yet occurred, all negotiation points have been 
agreed upon, and final contract language is under review.

The proposed wage increase includes a 2% across-the-board raise, resulting in an estimated additional 
annual cost of $48,526 to the organization.

When combined with the previously approved wage increases for ONRC, acute care, clinics, and 
management staff, the total annual wage expense increase is approximately $1,044,000. With an 
estimated 32% benefit load (excluding medical insurance), the total projected annual impact to the 
organization is $1,379,000.

Sara Shipman made the motion to approve the NAGE Wage Increases. Fran Krieger made the second. No

public input.

Cummins – Aye
Krieger – Aye
Chock – Aye
Shipman – Aye         MOTION CARRIED

ADJOURNMENT 

Edward Chock, M.D., made the motion to adjourn to Closed session. Fran Krieger made the second. No 

public input.

Krieger – Aye 
Chock – Aye
Moore – Aye
Shipman – Aye            MOTION CARRIED

7

Page 15 of 175



Oak Valley Hospital District
District Board of Directors
Regular Meeting - Open Session
March 6, 2025

The Oak Valley Hospital District meeting was adjourned to Closed session at 6:20 p.m.

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION
ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION

Approval of Board Meeting Minutes:

 February 6, 2025 – Regular Meeting (Approved)

Reports & Updates:

 Medical Staff Report – Gretchen Webb-Kummer, M.D., Chief of Staff (Approved)
 CEO Report – None

ADJOURNMENT

Edward Chock, M.D., made the motion to adjourn the Board of Directors meeting.  Sara Shipman made 
the second. No public input.

Cummins – Aye
Krieger – Aye 
Chock – Aye
Shipman – Aye

          MOTION CARRIED

The Board of Directors meeting was adjourned at 6:37 p.m.

Recorder:  Sheryl Perry, Clerk of the Board.

APPROVED:  _________________________________         DATE: ____________________
         Edward Chock, M.D., Secretary

8

Page 16 of 175



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF OAK VALLEY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

OPEN SESSION
March 24, 2025, 5:30p.m.

1425 West H Street, Oakdale, CA  95361
Royal Oak Conference Room

Board        Staff
Dan Cummins, Chair Person                                            Matt Heyn, President & CEO
Frances Krieger, Vice Chair Person David Rodrigues, COO
Edward Chock, M.D., Secretary David Neal, V.P., Nursing Services
Sara Shipman, Director

CALLED TO ORDER 
The District Board of Directors Meeting was called to order by Chair Person, Dan Cummins at 5:32p.m.

PUBLIC COMMENT
Public Comment read.  No public input.

Dan Cummins, Chair Person

Appointment of New Board Member

The Board convened for a brief meeting with a single agenda item: the appointment of a new board 
member to fill the vacancy created by the departure of Shirrelle O. Moore, in accordance with Section 1780 
of the California Government Code.

Two letters of interest were received, one from Danielle Sanders and one from Theodore R. Whidby. 
Danielle Sanders was present at the meeting; Mr. Whidby was not in attendance.

Fran Krieger made the motion to appoint Danielle Sanders to the vacant board seat.  Edward Chock, M.D. 
made the second.  No public input.

AYES: Cummins, Krieger, Chock, Shipman
NOES:

MOTION CARRIED

No Closed Session

ADJOURNMENT

Sara Shipman made the motion to adjourn the Special Board of Directors meeting.  Edward Chock, M.D. 
made the second. No public input.

AYES: Cummins, Krieger, Chock, Shipman
NOES:

 MOTION CARRIED

Page 17 of 175



Oak Valley Hospital District
District Board of Directors
Special Meeting - Open Session
March 24, 2025

The Oak Valley Hospital District meeting was adjourned to closed session at 5:35p.m.

Recorder: Sheryl Perry, Clerk of the Board 

APPROVED: _________________________________ DATE: ____________________ 
         Edward Chock, M.D., Board Secretary

2

Page 18 of 175



District Board Report  
Open Session 
04/03/2025 
Page 1 
 
MEMO:    April 3, 2025 
TO:  Members of the District Board 
FROM:  Medical Executive Committee  
RE:   Approval items to be reviewed in open session 
 
The Medical Executive Committee requests the District Board’s approval of the following items forwarded 
from the March 18, 2025, meeting.   
 
A. The Department of Medicine Committee Report – (03/11/2025)     

Lee Horwitz, MD, Chairperson 
i. FORMS & POLICIES         

FORMS         Approval 
• Form0418 ED-Admission Orders (Retire)     
• Form 3002 Emergency Department Bridge Orders    
• Form1112 Stroke Clinical Pathway      
• Form 3000 Bariatric Post Op Orders     
• Form 3001 Bariatric Pre-Operative Order Instructions   

 
POLICIES         Approval 
Administrative Manual 

• Performance Improvement Plan FY 2025     
 

Clinical Manual 
• Critical Value/Test Results Read-Back     
• Pediatric Admissions       

 
Community Health Centers Manual 

• Injections        
 

 
Infection Control Manual 

• Hand Hygiene          
• Tetanus/Diphtheria/Acellular Pertussis Vaccine Screening  

and Administration        
 
Nutritional Food Services Manual 

• Access to Nutrition and Food Services Department (Retire)   
o Combined with Personnel Permitted in the Department  

• Diets         
• Diet Cardex (Retire)       
• Floor Safety (Retire)       
• Food From Outside Sources      
• Food Ordering and Receiving      
• Food Preparation and Service      
• Food Storage        
• Food Temperatures       
• Meal Service to Residents      
• Organization & Staff       
• Personnel Management       
• Procedures on the Sanitation of Water Pitchers    
• Provision of Food or Nutrition Products for Altered Diets and Meal Schedules    
• Re-Admission Nutritional Risk Note (Retire)    
• Receiving and Storage Safety      
• Safety in Food Preparation      

Page 19 of 175



District Board Report  
Open Session 
04/03/2025 
Page 2 
 

• Safety Guidelines       
• Safety Rules (Retire)       

o Combined with Safety Guidelines  
• Sanitizing Dishwashing Area      
• Standards of Care       
• Texture Change Documentation (Retire)     
• Tray Assembly (Retire)       
• Trial Diets        

 
Respiratory Therapy Manual 

• Arrival of New Electrical Equipment     
• Bi-Level Positive Airway Pressure (BiPAP)    
• Blood Spill Procedure (Retire)      
• Broken Equipment Procedure (Retire)     
• Carboxy HgB Samples (Retire)      
• Considerations in Oxygen Therapy for Infants (Retire)   
• Continuous Pulse Oximetry (Retire)     
• Cough Techniques and Respiratory Exercises (Retire)   
• Crash Cart Supply List (Retire)      
• Disposable Equipment Change Outs     
• Downtime Procedure Record Keeping on the Ventilator Flow Sheet (Retire)  
• EKG Interpretation Guideline      
• Emergency Oxygen Process      
• Evaluating Patient Test Results (Retire)     
• General Safety Precautions with Oxygen Administration (Retire)  
• General Statement of the Administration of Oxygen   
• Nebulizer and Aerosol Therapy      
• Handling of Gas Cylinders (Retire)     
• Head Hood Oxygen or Free-Flow Oxygen (Retire)    
• Humidifiers (Retire)       
• Incentive Spirometry       
• Indications and Precautions with Continuous Ventilation   
• In-Service Education (Retire)      
• Intubation        

 
ii. DEPARTEMNT SCOPE OF SERVICE 

• Medical/Surgical Telemetry Department     Approval 
 

iii. Revised/New-Radiology Privilege Set      Approval 
 
B. The Department of Surgery Committee Report – (Next Mtg 04/08/2025)   Standing 

Matthew Tilstra, MD, Chairperson  
 

C. The Quality Council Report – (Next Sch Mtg 04/10/2025)     Standing 
Lee Horwitz, MD, Chairperson  

 

Page 20 of 175



Page 21 of 175



Page 22 of 175



Page 23 of 175



Page 24 of 175



Page 25 of 175



Page 26 of 175



Page 27 of 175



Page 28 of 175



Page 29 of 175



Page 30 of 175



Page 31 of 175



Page 32 of 175



Page 33 of 175



Page 34 of 175



Page 35 of 175



Page 36 of 175



Page 37 of 175



Page 38 of 175



Page 39 of 175



Page 40 of 175



Page 41 of 175



Page 42 of 175



Page 43 of 175



Page 44 of 175



Page 45 of 175



Page 46 of 175



Page 47 of 175



Page 48 of 175



Page 49 of 175



Page 50 of 175



Page 51 of 175



Page 52 of 175



Page 53 of 175



Page 54 of 175



Page 55 of 175



Page 56 of 175



Page 57 of 175



Page 58 of 175



Page 59 of 175



Page 60 of 175



Page 61 of 175



Page 62 of 175



Page 63 of 175



Page 64 of 175



Page 65 of 175



Page 66 of 175



Page 67 of 175



Page 68 of 175



Page 69 of 175



Page 70 of 175



Page 71 of 175



Page 72 of 175



Page 73 of 175



Page 74 of 175



Page 75 of 175



Page 76 of 175



Page 77 of 175



Page 78 of 175



Page 79 of 175



Page 80 of 175



Page 81 of 175



Page 82 of 175



Page 83 of 175



Page 84 of 175



Page 85 of 175



Page 86 of 175



Page 87 of 175



Page 88 of 175



Page 89 of 175



Page 90 of 175



Page 91 of 175



Page 92 of 175



Page 93 of 175



Page 94 of 175



Page 95 of 175



Page 96 of 175



Page 97 of 175



Page 98 of 175



Page 99 of 175



Page 100 of 175



Page 101 of 175



Page 102 of 175



Page 103 of 175



Page 104 of 175



Page 105 of 175



Page 106 of 175



Page 107 of 175



Page 108 of 175



Page 109 of 175



Page 110 of 175



Page 111 of 175



Page 112 of 175



Page 113 of 175



Page 114 of 175



Page 115 of 175



Page 116 of 175



Page 117 of 175



Page 118 of 175



Page 119 of 175



Page 120 of 175



Page 121 of 175



Page 122 of 175



Page 123 of 175



Page 124 of 175



Page 125 of 175



Page 126 of 175



Page 127 of 175



Page 128 of 175



Page 129 of 175



Page 130 of 175



Page 131 of 175



Page 132 of 175



Page 133 of 175



Page 134 of 175



Page 135 of 175



Page 136 of 175



Page 137 of 175



Page 138 of 175



Page 139 of 175



Page 140 of 175



Page 141 of 175



Page 142 of 175



Page 143 of 175



Page 144 of 175



Page 145 of 175



Page 146 of 175



Page 147 of 175



Page 148 of 175



Page 149 of 175



Page 150 of 175



Page 151 of 175



Page 152 of 175



Page 153 of 175



Page 154 of 175



Page 155 of 175



Page 156 of 175



Page 157 of 175



Page 158 of 175



Page 159 of 175



Page 160 of 175



Page 161 of 175



Page 162 of 175



Page 163 of 175



Page 164 of 175



Page 165 of 175



Page 166 of 175



Page 167 of 175



Page 168 of 175



Page 169 of 175



Page 170 of 175



Page 171 of 175



Page 172 of 175



Page 173 of 175



Page 174 of 175



Page 175 of 175


	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	04.03.2024 - District Board Agenda

	Consent Calendar Reports
	April 25 Board Report

	Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	03.06.2025 Board Meeting Minutes
	03.24.2025 Special Board Meeting Minutes

	Medical Staff Reports
	04-03-2025 Open Session Memo
	Open Session Packet


